Memo

To:
Robert N. Berkopec

From:
Michael W. Senske

CC:
Cynthia K. Friauf

Date:
11/08/00
Re:
Transition Management as it relates to the movement of the Rosenberg Funds

The following are the basic steps used by the various directed brokers in liquidating an existing manager.

The terminated manager is given a date in which they are to halt all trading of the account.

An evaluation of the holdings is performed to determine if any of the existing equity managers would like any of the holdings of the terminated manager.  If a new manager is being hired, they may also look at the list of holdings.  

Once it is determined which securities are going to be liquidated, a liquidity analysis is performed to determine how many dollars of a stock can be traded in a day without unduly pressuring the price of the stock.  This is done to determine the timing of the liquidation as it relates to the market and the manager’s holdings.  Once the timing is determined, the broker liquidates the portfolio.

While each broker is somewhat different, most use a trading system which is consistent with the Volume Weighted Average Price (VWAP) in real time.  What this means is that each trade is executed to ensure that the best execution is received by taking advantage of the intra day savings in price.  By combining this best execution strategy with the low commission rates of our directed brokers, we ensure that the liquidation is completed in the most efficient way possible.

After the liquidation is complete, the process is analyzed to determine how well it worked.  This is important because it allows us to make sure that the broker did what they promised to do.

While we can negotiate low rates because of our existing relationships (usually 2-2.5 cents per share), we may also want to consider allowing the directed broker to work with the buy-in of the new managers.  This way we can make sure that we do not pay large commissions to re-purchase a portfolio of new stocks.

I spoke with Andy Hanlon of Abel Noser and Chris Harlin of Lynch, Jones & Ryan.  Andy is willing to complete the liquidity analysis regardless of whether we use Abel Noser or not.  Chris cannot complete his analysis until we have hired Lynch Jones.  Andy has quoted us 1-1.5 cents per share to complete the sales, while Chris cannot go any lower than 3 cents per share because the new owners of Lynch, Jones set the limit.  I asked Chris why we would want to go with him, rather than with Abel Noser given this price difference.  He stated that because they are an owned by Instinet, they do more volume than Abel Noser and will be able to get us better execution.  He was unable to give me an average total cost (commission plus execution) that he would expect.  Andy, on the other hand, said that our total cost, including execution, should come in under 6 cents per share based on his experience with other transitions he has done.  Both companies provide a report after the trades are made to show us how the entire portfolio was sold and what the costs were.  

I would recommend that we use Abel Noser because they are offering a lower commission cost, while offering almost an identical strategy for completing the trading of the portfolio as Lynch Jones.
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